

**BOROUGH OF WESTWOOD  
NOTICE**

**NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that the following Ordinance was introduced and passed on first reading on regular meeting of the Mayor and Council on the 19<sup>th</sup> day of July, 2016, and that said Ordinance will be taken up for further consideration for final passage at a regular meeting of the Mayor and Council to be held on the 16<sup>th</sup> day of August, 2016 at 8:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as said matter can be reached, at which time and place all persons who may be interested therein will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning same.

Karen Hughes, Borough Clerk  
Borough of Westwood

**Ordinance #16-20**

**An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 375 Vehicles and Traffic Part 2. Parking**

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Westwood that Chapter 237 Parking Lots, Municipal, be amended as follows (deleted sections are noted by strikethroughs, new sections are **bold and underlined**):

Section 1. Amend:

**Article IV**

**Parking Lots**

Editor's Note: Original §§ 141-18 and 141-19, regarding municipal parking lots, which immediately followed this article title, were moved to Ch. 237, Parking Lots, Municipal, Art. I, Designation of Lots; Commercial Traffic, as part of the 2010 recodification.

**§ 375-9 Municipal parking lots.**

For provisions regulating municipal parking lots, refer to Chapter 237, Parking Lots, Municipal, of the Code of the Borough of Westwood.

**§ 375-10 Applicability of statute to private property; designation of lots open to public.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:5A-1, the Governing Body of the Borough of Westwood finds it in the interest of the public safety to accept the applications of the property owners of the locations hereinafter particularly described requesting that motor vehicle statutes, as specified in N.J.S.A. 39:5A-1, be made applicable to their properties. The applications are herein attached and henceforth made part of this chapter. The locations, described as "block" and "lot" numbers, as known and described on the current Official Assessment Map of the Borough of Westwood, are as follows:

<b>Location</b>	<b>Block/Lot Number</b>	<b>Description</b>
289 Broadway	907/1	<del>Seville Diner</del> <b><u>CVS</u></b> lot
700 to 790 Broadway	104/5	Westwood Plaza lot
20 Irvington Street	801/20	<del>A &amp; P Warehouse Liquors store</del> <b><u>Trader Joe's</u></b> lot
99 Kinderkamack Road	1804/5	Valley Plaza
345 Kinderkamack Road	810/7	Sturbridge Commons office building lot
215 to 223 Old Hook Road	2101/1 and 2	Pascack Medical Center
400 Old Hook Road	2201/3	Westwood Medical Center lot
150 Tillman Street	2209/2	Spectrum for Living
124 Washington Avenue	801/22, 23, 24 and 25	St. Andrew's Church property

## Article V

### Parking Prohibitions

#### § 375-11 Stopping or standing prohibited at all times.

No person shall stop or stand a vehicle at any time upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Broadway	East	From the southerly curbline of Harold Street, south for a distance of 100 feet
Broadway	East	From the Hillsdale Borough line, south to the northerly curbline of Harold Street
Broadway	East	From the northerly curbline of Irvington Street, north for a distance of 215 feet
Broadway	East	From the southerly curbline of Irvington Street, south for a distance of 188 feet
Broadway	East	From the northerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, north for a distance of 105 feet
Broadway	East	From the southerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, south to the northerly curbline of Valley Avenue
Broadway	East	From the northerly curbline of Lake Street, north for a distance of 315 feet
Broadway	East	From the southerly curbline of Lake Street, south to the northerly curbline of Grand Street
Broadway	East	From a point 109 feet south of the southerly curbline of Westwood Avenue, south for a distance of 45 feet
Broadway	West	From the Hillsdale Borough line, south to the northerly curbline of Irvington Street
Broadway	West	In front of each of the 8 curved shade tree islands,—4 <u>2</u> between Irvington Street and Washington Avenue and—4 <u>3</u> between Washington Avenue and Park Avenue
Broadway	West	From the northerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, extended across, north for a distance of 75 feet
Broadway	West	From the southerly curbline of Park Avenue, south to the northerly curbline of Valley Avenue, extended across
Broadway	West	From the northerly curbline of Washington Avenue, north for a distance of 100 feet
Forest Avenue Extension	East	From the southerly curbline of Lake Drive, south to the westerly curbline of Fourth Avenue
Forest Avenue Extension	West	From the southerly curbline of Ridgewood Road, south to the northerly curbline of Lafayette Avenue
Fourth Avenue	East	From the intersecting point with Third Avenue, south to the Emerson Borough line
Fourth Avenue	West	From the intersecting point with Third Avenue, south to the Emerson Borough line
Irvington Street	North	From the westerly curbline of Kinderkamack Road,

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Irvington Street	South	west to the northerly curblineline of Washington Avenue From the westerly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road, west to the northerly curblineline of Washington Avenue
Kinderkamack Road	East	From the southerly curblineline of Harrington Avenue, south to the northerly curblineline of Lotus Street
Kinderkamack Road	East	From the northerly curblineline of Irvington Street, extended across, south to the northerly curblineline of Westwood Avenue
Kinderkamack Road	East	From the Hillsdale Borough line, south to the northerly curblineline of Maple Avenue
Kinderkamack Road	East	From the southerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, south to the Emerson Borough line
Kinderkamack Road	West	From a point 265 feet north of the northerly curblineline of Bergen Street, south to the Emerson Borough line
Kinderkamack Road	West	From the Hillsdale Borough line, south to the northerly curblineline of Irvington Street
Kinderkamack Road	West	From the northerly curblineline of Westwood Avenue, north for a distance of 250 feet
Main Street	West	From the southerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, south to the Emerson Borough line
Old Hook Road	North	From the southerly curblineline of Valley Avenue, east to the Emerson Borough line
Old Hook Road	South	From the northerly curblineline of Valley Avenue, extended across, east to the Emerson Borough line
Ridgewood Road	North	From the westerly curblineline of Lafayette Avenue, west to the Washington Township line
Ridgewood Road	South	From the westerly curblineline of Forest Avenue Extension, west to the Washington Township line
Ridgewood Road (approach ramp)	North	From the westerly curblineline of Lafayette Avenue, west to the northerly curblineline of Ridgewood Road
Ridgewood Road (approach ramp)	South	From the westerly curblineline of Lafayette Avenue, west to the northerly curblineline of Ridgewood Road
St. Nicholas Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Washington Avenue, south to Becker Lane
Sand Road	East	From the northerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, north for a distance of 220 feet
Sand Road	West	From the northerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, north for a distance of 240 feet
Third Avenue	West	From the easterly curblineline of Fourth Avenue, north for a distance of 575 feet
Washington Avenue	North	From a point 150 feet east of the easterly curblineline of Irvington Street, west to the Washington Township line
Washington Avenue	South	From the westerly curblineline of Broadway, west to the Washington Township line
Westwood Avenue	North	From the Hillsdale Borough line, west for a distance of 1,160 feet
Westwood Avenue	North	From a point 105 feet east of the easterly curblineline of

Street	Side	Location
Westwood Avenue	South	Kinderkamack Road, east for a distance of 67 feet From the Hillsdale Borough line, west to the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road

§ 375-12 **Stopping or standing prohibited during certain hours.**

No person shall stop or stand a vehicle during the specified times of the specified days upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

Street	Side	Times	Location
Berkeley Avenue	West	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 <b>4:30</b> p.m. (school days)	From the southerly curblines of Harrington Avenue, south for a distance of 386 feet
First Avenue	East	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 <b>4:30</b> p.m. (school days)	From the southerly curblines of Elm Street, south for a distance of 200 feet
<del>Harrington Avenue</del>	<del>North</del>	<del>7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.</del> <del>(school days)</del>	<del>From the easterly curblines of Berkeley Avenue, east for a distance of 360 feet</del>
Lake Drive	South	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 <b>4:30</b> p.m. (school days)	From a point 150 feet east of the easterly curblines of Forest Avenue Extension, east for a distance of 880 feet
Second Avenue [Added 5-22-2007 by Ord. No. 07-07]	East	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (when <del>Ketler School</del> <b>WRMS</b> is in session)	Beginning at a point on the easterly side of Second Avenue, located 775 feet from the intersection of same with Mill Street, and continuing in a southerly direction for a distance of 115 feet
Third Avenue	West	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (school days)	From the northerly curblines of Pine Street, north for a distance of 200 feet
Third Avenue	West	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (school days)	From the southerly curblines of Pine Street, south for a distance of 556 feet

§ 375-13 **Parking prohibited at all times.**

No person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

Street	Side	Location
Ackerman Avenue	South	From the Emerson Borough line, west to the easterly curblines of Fourth Avenue
Becker Lane	North	From Fourth Avenue, west to St. Nicholas Avenue
Becker Lane	South	From Fourth Avenue, west to the entrance of the Park Avenue lot
Bergenline Avenue	North	From the westerly curblines of Tillman Street, west to the easterly curblines of Sullivan Street
Bergenline Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Sullivan Street, west to the easterly curblines of Charles Street
Bergen Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Fairview Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Center Avenue

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Bergen Street	South	From the westerly curblineline of Roosevelt Avenue, west to the easterly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road
Berkeley Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Harrington Avenue, south for a distance of 392 feet
Bogert Place	<del>North</del> <b><u>Both</u></b>	From the southerly curblineline of Westwood Avenue, south for a distance of 110 feet
Booker Street	South	From the westerly curblineline of Tillman Street, west to the easterly curblineline of Carver Avenue
Carver Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Westwood Boulevard, south to the Emerson Borough line
Center Avenue	East	From the westerly curblineline of Fairview Avenue, south for a distance of 433 feet
Center Avenue	West	From the southerly curblineline of Bergen Street, extended across, south for a distance of 100 feet
Center Avenue	West	From the westerly curblineline of Fairview Avenue, south for a distance of 235 feet
Center Avenue	West	From a point 500 feet south of the westerly curblineline of Fairview Avenue, south to the northerly curblineline of Lake Street
Center Avenue	West	From a point 200 feet south of the southerly curblineline of Westwood Avenue, south for a distance of 75 feet
Charles Street	East	From the southerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, south to the Emerson Borough line
Charles Street	West	From the southerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, south to the northerly curblineline of Bergenline Avenue, extended across
Crest Street	North	From the easterly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road, east to the end of the street
Crest Street	South	From the easterly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road, east for a distance of 100 feet
Elm Street	North	From the westerly curblineline of Third Avenue, west to the easterly curblineline of Fourth Avenue
Emerson Road	East	From the northerly curblineline of Old Hook Road, north for a distance of 110 feet
Fairview Avenue	West	From a point 100 feet south of the southerly curblineline of Westwood Avenue, south for a distance of 250 feet
Fifth Avenue	East	From the northerly curblineline of Mill Street, north for a distance of 115 feet
First Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Bogert Avenue, south to the southerly curblineline of Mill Street
First Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Park Avenue, extended across, south for a distance of 50 feet
Fourth Avenue	Both	Within the property boundaries of The Enclave At Westwood complex, between Mill Street and Boulevard
Fourth Avenue	East	From the southerly curblineline of Mill Street, south to the end of the street, at the brook
Fourth Avenue	East	From the westerly curblineline of Third Avenue, north

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
		to the end of the street, at the brook
Grand Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, west to the easterly curblines of Broadway
Green Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, west for a distance of 192 feet
Harrington Avenue	North	From the westerly curblines of Park Place, west to the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road
<b><u>Harrington Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>North</u></b>	<b><u>From the easterly curblines of Berkeley Avenue, east for a distance of 360 feet</u></b>
Harrington Avenue	North	From the River Vale Township line, south, then west for a distance of 556 feet
Harrington Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Sand Road, west for a distance of 200 feet
Harrington Avenue	South	From the River Vale Township line, south to the easterly curblines of Sand Road
Hooper Street	East	From the northerly curblines of Old Hook Road, north to the end of the street
Hooper Street	West	From the northerly curblines of Old Hook Road, north to the end of the street
Jefferson Avenue	North	From the easterly curblines of Broadway, east for a distance of 144 feet
Jefferson Avenue	North	From the westerly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, west to the easterly curblines of Fairview Avenue
Jefferson Avenue	South	From the easterly curblines of Broadway, east for a distance of 141 feet
Lafayette Avenue	East	From the northerly curblines of Washington Avenue, north for a distance of 100 feet
Lafayette Avenue	East	From the southerly curblines of Washington Avenue, south to the northerly curblines of Lake Drive
Lafayette Avenue	North	From the westerly curblines of Forest Avenue Extension, west for a distance of 250 feet
Lafayette Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Fourth Avenue, west for a distance of 250 feet
Lafayette Avenue	West	From the northerly curblines of Washington Avenue, north for a distance of 100 feet
Lafayette Avenue	West	From the southerly curblines of Washington Avenue, south to the northerly curblines of Ridgewood Road
Lake Drive	North	From the easterly curblines of Lafayette Avenue, east for a distance of 915 feet
Lake Drive	South	From the easterly curblines of Forest Avenue Extension, east for a distance of 150 feet
Lake Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Center Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Broadway
Lake Street	South	From the westerly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, west to the easterly curblines of Broadway
Lincoln Boulevard	South	From the easterly curblines of Fourth Avenue, east for a distance of 100 feet
Lotus Street	North	From the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road,

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
		east to the westerly curblines of Lexington Avenue
Lowell Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Berkeley Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Lexington Avenue
Lowell Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Roosevelt Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road
Madison Avenue	East	From the northerly curblines of Washington Avenue, north to the southerly curblines of Irvington Street
Madison Avenue	West	From the northerly curblines of Irvington Street, north for a distance of 363 feet
Madison Avenue	West	From the northerly curblines of Washington Avenue, north for a distance of 61 feet
<del>Memorial Drive [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]</del>	<del>East</del>	<del>From the easterly curblines of Third Avenue, south to the northerly curblines of Park Avenue</del>
Mill Street	North	From the westerly curblines of First Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Lafayette Avenue
Mill Street	South	From the westerly curblines of First Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Fifth Avenue
Mill Street	South	From the easterly curblines of Lafayette Avenue, east for a distance of 150 feet
Palm Street	South	From the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, east to the westerly curblines of Lexington Avenue
Park Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Fourth Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of St. Nicholas Avenue
Park Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Second Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Third Avenue
Park Place	West	From the southerly curblines of Westwood Avenue, south to the northerly curblines of Harrington Avenue
Pine Street	North	From the westerly curblines of Third Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Fourth Avenue
Pine Street	South	From the westerly curblines of Third Avenue, west to the easterly curblines of Fourth Avenue
Sand Road	East	From the southerly curblines of Harrington Avenue, south to a point 220 feet north of the northerly curblines of Old Hook Road
Sullivan Street	East	From the southerly curblines of Old Hook Road, south to the northerly curblines of Woodland Avenue
Terrace Drive	<del>North</del> <b>West</b>	From the southerly curblines of Bryant Place, west to the southerly curblines of Westwood Avenue
Third Avenue	East	From the easterly curblines of Fourth Avenue, north for a distance of 1,440 feet, to the north property line of <del>the Ketter School</del> <b>WRMS</b>
<del>Third Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]</del>	<del>East</del>	<del>From the westerly curblines of Memorial Drive, south for a distance of 70 feet</del>
Tillman Street	East	From a point 175 feet north of the northerly curblines of Old Hook Road, south to the northerly curblines of Woodland Avenue
Tillman Street	West	From the southerly curblines of Westwood Boulevard, south to the northerly curblines of

Street	Side	Location
		Maulbeck Avenue
Valley Avenue	South	From the easterly curbline of Old Hook Road, east, then south to the end of the street, at the property of the Valley Avenue Apartments
Washington Avenue	North	From the easterly curbline of Madison Avenue, east for a distance of 54 feet
Washington Avenue	North	From the westerly curbline of Madison Avenue, west for a distance of 78 feet
Westwood Avenue	North	From the easterly curbline of Center Avenue, east for a distance of 47 feet
Westwood Avenue	North	From the easterly curbline of Fairview Avenue, east for a distance of 50 feet
Westwood Avenue	North	From the westerly curbline of Kinderkamack Road, west for a distance of 38 feet
Westwood Avenue	South	From the easterly curbline of Fairview Avenue, east for a distance of 56 feet
Westwood Avenue	South	From the westerly curbline of Fairview Avenue, west for a distance of 44 feet
Westwood Avenue	South	From the westerly curbline of Kinderkamack Road, west for a distance of 49 feet
Westwood Boulevard	South	From the westerly curbline of Emerson Road, west to the easterly curbline of Pascack Road
Woodland Avenue	North	From the westerly curbline of Tillman Street, west to the easterly curbline of Sullivan Street
Woodland Avenue	South	From the westerly curbline of Tillman Street, west to the easterly curbline of Charles Street

§ 375-14 **Parking prohibited during certain hours.**

~~A. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. in Municipal Lots A, B and C, as described in § 237-1 of Chapter 237, Parking Lots, Municipal, Article I, Designation of Lots; Commercial Parking, of the Code of the Borough of Westwood, except as may be authorized, in writing, by the Mayor and Council. [Added 10-5-2004 by Ord. No. 04-17]~~

**A. It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle in Lot A (Center Ave South), Lot B (Center Avenue North), and Lot C (Fairview Avenue) between 7:00 am and 8:30 am, except in designated employee parking spaces. No person shall park a vehicle in a designated employee parking space unless the vehicle has displayed from the rear view mirror a valid and current employee parking hang tag, as defined in §§375-47 to 50.**

B. No person shall park a vehicle during the times specified on any day (except Sundays and public holidays) upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

Street	Side	Times	Location
Brookside Avenue	East	9:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. (all days)	From the northerly curbline of Maple Avenue, south to the southerly curbline of Lake Street
First Avenue	West	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (school days)	From the southerly curbline of Elm Street, south for a distance of 200 feet (except for pickup

Street	Side	Times	Location
			and/or discharge of students, limited to 3 minutes of standing of vehicle with engine running and driver remaining with vehicle)
Harrington Avenue	South	7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (school days)	From the easterly curbline of Berkeley Avenue, east for a distance of 360 feet (except for pickup and/or discharge of students, limited to 3 minutes of standing of vehicle with engine running and driver remaining with vehicle)
Harvard Place [Added 5-22-2007 by Ord. No. 07-08]	North	Sundays between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.	Beginning at the easterly curbline of Fitzgerald Avenue and continuing east for a distance of 175 feet
Lafayette Avenue	East	9:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. (all days)	From the northerly curbline of McKinley Avenue, north for a distance of 290 feet
Lafayette Avenue	West	9:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. (all days)	From the northerly curbline of McKinley Avenue, north for a distance of 325 feet
McKinley Avenue	North	9:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. (all days)	From the westerly curbline of Lafayette Avenue, west to the easterly curbline of Hillside Avenue
Park Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]	North	9:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. (all days)	From the westerly curbline of Memorial Drive, west to the easterly curbline of Third Avenue
Princeton Place [Added 5-22-2007 by Ord. No. 07-08]	North	Sundays between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.	Beginning at the easterly curbline of Fitzgerald Avenue and continuing east for a distance of 175 feet

**§ 375-15 Overnight parking prohibited.**

Unless authorized by the Parking Authority under the terms of a cancelable agreement filed with the Borough Clerk, no person shall park or permit the parking of any vehicle on any street or in any municipal parking lot within the Borough of Westwood on any day between the hours of 2:30 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.

**§ 375-16 Privately owned parking areas open to public.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:5A-1, which have been made applicable to this chapter in § 375-10, no person shall park or permit the parking of any vehicle at any time upon any of the semipublic or private roads, streets, driveways, parkways, parking areas or other roadways or portions thereof which are open to or used by the public, hereinafter described below:

**Property**

700 to 790 Broadway (Westwood Plaza)

**Prohibition**

No parking, stopping or standing in any of the areas designated as a "fire lane" along the front

**Property**

700 to 790 Broadway (Westwood Plaza)

500 Center Avenue (Stanford Court Apartments) [Added 12-18-2001 by Ord. No. 01-25]

20 to 46 Charles Street (Coventry Square Apartments) [Added 12-18-2001 by Ord. No. 01-25]

20 Irvington Street (~~A & P Warehouse Liquors~~)  
**(Trader Joe's)**

345 Kinderkamack Road (Sturbridge Commons)

215 to 223 Old Hook Road (Pascack Medical Center)

400 Old Hook Road (Westwood Medical Center)

**Prohibition**

of the buildings

No parking in any area on the property not specifically marked and designated as a parking space

No parking, stopping or standing in all areas of premises designated as a "fire lane"

No parking, stopping or standing in any of the areas designated as a "fire lane" along the building perimeter

No parking, stopping or standing in the area designated as a "fire lane" along the front (south) side of the building

No parking, stopping or standing in the area designated as a "fire zone" along the rear (east) side of the building

No parking in any area on the property not specifically marked and designated as a parking space

No parking in any area on the property not specifically marked and designated as a parking space

No parking in any area on the property not specifically marked and designated as a parking space

**§ 375-17 Removal of vehicles; costs and fees.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-136, any vehicle parked or left standing upon any of the areas described in this article which is disabled to the extent that the operator cannot move it or any unoccupied vehicle parked or standing in violation of this article shall be deemed a nuisance and a menace to the safe and proper regulation of traffic, and any peace officer may provide for the removal of such vehicle. The owner of such vehicle shall pay the reasonable costs and fees of the removal and storage which may result from such removal before regaining possession of the vehicle.

**Article VI**

**Restricted Parking**

**§ 375-18 Angle parking zones.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-197.4, the streets or parts of streets described below which have been marked and signed for angle parking for a period of time in excess of 20 consecutive years under the jurisdiction of this municipality shall remain as such, and all other streets or parts of streets described below which have been marked and signed for angle parking and which are under the jurisdiction of this municipality are hereinafter designated as "angle parking zones." Individual parking spaces will be designated by lines painted or durably marked on the surface of the street and/or adjacent curbing. Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-135, vehicles shall be parked at the angle to the curb designated, in the direction of travel and entirely within the limits of the space provided.

Street	Side	Location
Broadway	West	From a point 158 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street,

Street	Side	Location
Broadway	West	south to a point 210 feet north of the northerly curbline of Washington Avenue From a point 110 feet south of the southerly curbline of Washington Avenue, south to a point 75 feet north of the northerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, extended across
<del>Madison Avenue</del>	<del>West</del>	<del>From the southerly curbline of Irvington Street, south to the northerly curbline of Washington Avenue</del>
Memorial Drive [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]	West	<del>From the easterly curbline of Third Avenue, south to the northerly curbline of Park Avenue</del> <b><u>Both sides, entire length</u></b>
<del>Park Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]</del>	<del>North</del>	<del>From the westerly curbline of Memorial Drive, west to the easterly curbline of Third Avenue</del>

§ 375-19 **Handicapped parking.**

A. Handicapped parking spaces on streets and in municipal lots. Pursuant to the authority granted to this municipality by N.J.S.A. 39:4-197, the following on-street and municipal lot locations are hereby designated as restricted parking spaces for use by persons who have been issued special vehicle identification cards by the Division of Motor Vehicles. No other person shall be permitted to park in these spaces:

Street	Side	Location
Center Avenue	West	In Municipal Lot A, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1A, the first 2 metered spaces facing north at the northeast corner <b><u>and the first space facing south at the southeast corner</u></b>
Center Avenue	West	In Municipal Lot B, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1B, the first 2 metered spaces facing south at the southeast corner <b><u>and the two spots in front of the dumpsters facing south at the southwest corner</u></b>
Fairview Avenue	West	In Municipal Lot C, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1C, the first <b><u>two spaces</u></b> facing north at the northeast corner of the lot and the first space facing south at the southeast corner of the lot
Jefferson Avenue	South	From a point 57 feet east of the easterly curbline of Center Avenue, extended across, east for a distance of 22 feet
Jefferson Avenue	South	In Municipal Lot E, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1E, the 2 spaces facing east at the southeast corner of the lot
<b><u>Memorial Drive</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>From a point 138 feet north of the northerly curbline of Park Avenue, 2 spaces</u></b>
Third Avenue	West	From a point 126 feet south of the southerly

Street	Side	Location
		curbline of Park Avenue, south for a distance of 35 feet
Washington Avenue	South	In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the 2 spaces facing north in the curb cut off Becker Lane on the south side of the Municipal building, east of the rear main entrance doors
Washington Avenue	South	In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, in Metered Lot 2, <del>the 2 spaces facing north at the northeast corner of the lot by Fourth Avenue</del> <b><u>the first space facing east at the southeast corner of the Lot by Fourth Avenue</u></b>
<b><u>Washington Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>South</u></b>	<b><u>In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, in Metered Lot 1, the first space facing north in the northeast corner of the lot by Becker Lane</u></b>

B. Handicapped parking zones in front of residences. Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-197.6, the following locations are hereby designated as restricted parking zones in front of residences occupied by licensed handicapped persons. Only a motor vehicle for which a valid permit has been issued and which has such permit properly displayed shall be permitted to be parked in the restricted parking zone indicated on such permit.

Street	Side	Location
--------	------	----------

(Reserved)

C. Handicapped parking spaces in parking lots and parking yards which are open to the public or to which the public is invited. The parking spaces designated below which are located in the parking lots and parking yards which are open to the public or to which the public is invited, particularly described in § 375-10, are hereby designated as restricted parking spaces for use by persons who have been issued special vehicle identification cards by the Division of Motor Vehicles. No other person shall be permitted to park in these spaces:

Street	Location
Bergenline Avenue	On the property of No. 41, 1 space facing east at the northwest corner of the building
Bergenline Avenue	On the property of No. 55, 1 space facing west on the east side of the building at the northeast corner of the lot
Bergenline Avenue	On the property of No. 125, 1 space facing east on the north side of the building, adjacent to the main entrance
Bergen Street	On the property of No. 36, 2 spaces facing south in the lot on the north side of the building
Broadway	On the property of No. 289, the <del>Seville Diner</del> <b><u>CVS</u></b> , the 2 spaces in the lot, facing <del>west</del> <b><u>north</u></b> , on the <del>east</del> <b><u>west</u></b> side of the <del>building</del> <b><u>parking lot</u></b> at the north end of the <del>main entrance ramp</del>

Street	Location
Broadway	On the property of No. 499, in the rear of the building, 1 space facing west at the southeast corner
Broadway	In the Westwood Plaza, for No. 700, the Kmart store, the 10 spaces in the lot, 5 facing east and 5 facing west, at the south end of the parking aisle that ends directly in front of the main entrance/exit
Broadway	In the Westwood Plaza, for Nos. 700 to 790, the <del>Grand Union</del> <b>TJ Maxx</b> store, the 6 spaces in the lot, 3 facing north and 3 facing south, on the east side (front) of the building at the end of the parking aisle nearest the south entrance/exit doors
Broadway	In the Westwood Plaza, the 4 spaces in the lot, 2 facing east and 2 facing west, at the south end of the parking aisle at the northwest corner of the Kmart store building
Broadway	In the Westwood Plaza, the 3 spaces in the lot, facing west, at the south end of the first parking aisle where the east/west roadway that passes in front of the Kmart store intersects with the north/south roadway that passes in front of the Grand Union store
Irvington Street	On the property of No. 20, the 4 spaces facing west at the southeast corner of the building
<b><u>Irvington Street</u></b>	<b><u>On the property of No. 20, the 2 spaces facing west and two spaces facing east adjacent to the Trader Joe entrance</u></b>
Jefferson Avenue	On the property of No. 85, the bank building, 2 spaces facing east on the east side of the lot, adjacent to the main entrance walkway
Kinderkamack Road	On the property of No. 99, the Valley Plaza office building, the <del>3</del> <b>2</b> spaces in the lot, <b><u>one</u></b> facing south <b><u>and one facing east</u></b> , at the northwest corner of the building
Kinderkamack Road	On the property of No. 219, the Becker Funeral Home, the 2 spaces facing west on the <del>south</del> <b><u>north</u></b> side of the driveway at the northwest corner of the property
Kinderkamack Road	On the property of No. 345, the Sturbridge Commons office building, 1 space in the lot, facing north, on the north side of the building, which is the third space from Kinderkamack Road, along the north property line
Kinderkamack Road	On the property of No. 505, the Westwood Elks Club, the 2 spaces facing south at the northeast corner of the building
<del>Madison Avenue</del> <b><u>Memorial Drive</u></b>	On the property of the N.J. Transit Railroad Station, the <del>2</del> <b>3</b> spaces facing south and the <del>2</del> <b>3</b> spaces facing north in the lot on the south side of the station building
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. <del>215</del> <b>219</b> , the first space facing north at the south <del>west</del> <b><u>east</u></b> corner of the building
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 221, the first space facing <del>east</del> <b><u>north</u></b> at the south <del>west</del> <b><u>east</u></b> corner of the building
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 223, the first space facing north against the east side of the building at the northeast corner

Street	Location
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 245, the first space facing <del>east</del> <b><u>west</u></b> at the south <del>east</del> <b><u>west</u></b> corner of the building
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 250, the Hackensack University Medical Center North at Pascack Valley, the <del>6</del> <b><u>10</u></b> spaces facing north along the north side of the main visitor's lot in the front of the building
<b><u>Old Hook Road</u></b>	<b><u>On the property of No. 250, the Hackensack University Medical Center North at Pascack Valley, the 13 spaces on the south side of the building east of the main entrance</u></b>
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 261, 1 space facing south at the southwest corner of the property
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 270, the 2 spaces facing south at the northwest corner of the building, adjacent to the main entrance
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 300, the Valley Health Care Center, <del>1 space facing east in the rear of the building, adjacent the rear entrance</del> <b><u>4 spaces facing west by the main entrance</u></b>
<b><u>Old Hook Road</u></b>	<b><u>On the property of No. 300, the Valley Health Care Center, 2 spaces facing west at the back of the visitors lot</u></b>
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 301, Westwood Diner, 1 space on the <del>south</del> <b><u>north east</u></b> side of the building on the west side of the exit driveway, adjacent to the main entrance walkway
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 333, the 4 spaces facing west at the north <del>west</del> <b><u>east</u></b> corner of the lot, adjacent to the main entrance on the east side of the building
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 336, 1 space facing north on the south side of the building, adjacent to the main entrance
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 354, the <del>6</del> <b><u>8</u></b> spaces facing <del>west</del> <b><u>south</u></b> on the south side of the lot, <del>running parallel to the north side of the building</del> <b><u>facing the north side of the building</u></b>
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 363, the <del>2</del> <b><u>5</u></b> spaces facing west at the north <del>west</del> <b><u>east</u></b> corner of the building, adjacent to the main entrance
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 390, 2 spaces in the lot, facing west, against the east side of the building, adjacent to the main entrance
Old Hook Road	On the property of No. 400, the Westwood Medical Center building, the <del>2</del> <b><u>4</u></b> spaces in the lot, facing south, on the north side of the building, <del>1 on each side of the rear entrance walkway</del> <b><u>east of main entrance</u></b>
Old Hook Road	The <del>2</del> spaces facing south at the northwest corner of the building
Old Hook Road	The <del>3</del> spaces facing east on the north side of the emergency room parking area in the rear of the building

Street	Location
Tillman Street	On the property of No. 150, Spectrum for Living, 2 spaces in the lot, facing west, on the east side of the building
Washington Avenue	On the property of No. 124, St. Andrew's Church, 2 spaces in the lot for the school building, on the west side of the school building, facing west, located at the 10th and 11th spaces from Washington Avenue. Also, the 2 spaces facing south at the northeast corner of the school building
Washington Avenue	On the property of No. 134, the St. Andrew's Church building, + <u>3</u> space in the lot for the church, on the east side of the church building, facing west, adjacent to the rear entrance doorway

D. Issuance of handicapped parking permits and temporary handicapped placards; fees.

- (1) Handicapped parking permits shall be issued pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-197.7 and may be obtained from the Chief of Police or his designee. A fee of \$4 per permit is hereby fixed for the issuance of such permit.
- (2) Temporary handicapped placards shall be issued pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-206 and may be obtained from the Chief of Police. The fee for the issuance of such temporary placard shall be \$4 and payable to the Director of the Division of Motor Vehicles.

§ 375-20 **Resident sticker zones.**

[Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9; 3-3-2015 by Ord. No. 15-5]

- A. The following streets or parts of streets are hereby designated as resident sticker zones. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, public holidays excepted, unless the vehicle has displayed in the left rear window a valid and current resident sticker.

Street	Side	Location
Fourth Avenue	East	From Park Avenue to Elm Street
Memorial Drive	<del>West</del>	<del>From Third Avenue to Park Avenue</del> <b><u>Entire length</u></b>
Park Avenue	North	From First Avenue to Memorial Drive
Park Avenue	North	From a point <del>185</del> <b><u>225</u></b> feet west of the westerly curblineline of Memorial Drive, west to Third Avenue, <b><u>2 spaces</u></b>
Second Avenue	East	From a point 60 feet south of Park Avenue, south to a point 145 feet north of Elm Street
Second Avenue	West	From <b><u>a point 135 feet south of</u></b> Park Avenue, <b><u>south</u></b> to Elm Street

- B. Issuance of resident stickers; fee. Resident stickers are issued by, and may be purchased from, the Clerk of the Borough of Westwood. A fee of ~~\$5~~ **not to exceed \$25** per sticker is hereby fixed for issuance of such sticker. The Borough Administrator shall from time to time adopt rules for the

issuance of said stickers and encompassing such matters as verification of residents, issuance of replacement stickers and the like. [Amended 1-18-2011 by Ord. No. 11-04]

- C. Resident stickers as evidence of ownership. Wherever entrance to or use of any Borough facility is limited to motor vehicles owned and operated by residents of the Borough of Westwood, such ownership shall be evidenced by the resident stickers issued by the Clerk of the Borough of Westwood.
- D. Procedure upon denial of resident sticker. Any person denied a sticker may appeal to the Mayor and Council and have a hearing on such denial within 45 days of the written request for such hearing.

**§ 375-21 Fire Department business zones.**

The streets or parts of streets described below are hereby designated as Fire Department business zones. No person shall park a vehicle in the areas described below unless said person is present in these locations for the purpose of contacting or transacting with the said Department:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Center Avenue	East	From the southerly curbline of Bergen Street, south for a distance of 152 feet
Center Avenue	East	From the northerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, north for a distance of 125 feet

**§ 375-22 Fire Department personnel zone.**

The area described below is hereby designated and reserved expressly for the parking of Fire Department vehicles and vehicles owned or operated by active members of the Fire Department of the Borough of Westwood. No person shall park a vehicle in the area described unless said vehicle is owned or operated by an active member of the Fire Department of the Borough of Westwood:

**Location**

Municipal Lot F, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

**§ 375-23 Community Center business/activity parking.**

[Added 7-20-2004 by Ord. No. 04-07]

The streets or parts of streets and/or municipal lots or parts of municipal lots described below are hereby designated for Community Center business and/or activities. No person shall park a vehicle in the areas described below unless said person is present in these locations for the purpose of contacting or transacting within the Community Center or present for the purpose of participating in a scheduled event being conducted within:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Jefferson Avenue	South	From a point 79 feet east of the easterly curbline of Center Avenue, extended across, east for a distance of 63 feet
Jefferson Avenue	South	Municipal Lot E, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

**§ 375-24 Municipal business/municipal personnel parking.**

The streets or parts of streets or municipal parking lots or parts of municipal parking lots described below are hereby designated for municipal business/municipal personnel parking. The parking designations for these areas, as described in Article II, § 375-7, are as follows: designated official, Police Department

personnel, Borough employee, Ambulance Corps member and visitor. No person shall park a vehicle in the areas described unless said person is authorized by the posted designation:

Street	Side	Location
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the <del>2</del> <u>3</u> spaces facing north on the north side of Becker Lane at the base of the antenna tower are reserved for police vehicles
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the 5 spaces facing west on the west side of Metered Lot 1 at the south end, posted as "Ambulance Corps Personnel"
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the 4 spaces facing south at the southwest corner of Metered Lot 2, posted as "Borough Employee Parking"
<del>101 Washington Avenue</del>		<del>In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the 4 spaces facing east on the east side of the Park Avenue Lot at the south end, posted as "Borough Employee Parking"</del>
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the <del>7</del> <u>6</u> spaces facing west on the west side of the Park Avenue Lot at the south end, posted as "Borough Employee Parking"
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the <del>4</del> <u>5</u> spaces facing west on the west side of the Park Avenue Lot at the north end, posted <del>for the individual designated official</del> <b>as "Visitor"</b>
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the <del>7</del> <u>2</u> spaces facing east along the east side of the Park Avenue Lot, posted as "Visitor"
<b><u>101 Washington Avenue</u></b>		<b><u>In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the 5 spaces facing east on the east side of the Park Avenue Lot at the north end, posted for the individual designated official</u></b>
101 Washington Avenue		In Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1D, the Police/Employee Lot is reserved for Police Department personnel

§ 375-25 **Church business zones.**

A. The streets or parts of streets described below are hereby designated as church business zones. No person shall park a vehicle in any of the areas described unless such vehicle displays a valid permit

or identification issued for this purpose:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Bergen Street	South	From a point 60 feet west of the westerly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, west to Fairview Avenue
Harrington Avenue	South	From a point 45 feet east of the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road, east for a distance of 85 feet
Park Avenue	South	From a point 60 feet west of the westerly curblines of Third Avenue, west to Fourth Avenue
Second Avenue	East	From a point 25 feet north of the northerly curblines of Elm Street, north for a distance of 120 feet

B. Issuance of permits or identification. Any church organization for which a church business zone has been established within this chapter shall provide for the issuance of permits or some form of identification which will clearly identify a specific motor vehicle and the location where it is authorized to be parked. The design and size of the permit or form of identification shall be determined by the director or clergyman in charge of the respective church, in consultation with the Chief of Police. Said permit or identification and the manner in which it is to be displayed will be subject to the approval of the Chief of Police.

**§ 375-26 Library business zones.**

The streets or parts of streets or municipal parking lots described below are hereby designated as library business zones. No person shall park a vehicle in these areas unless said vehicle is owned or operated by employees of the Westwood Library or present at these locations for the purpose of contacting or transacting within the Westwood Library:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Park Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]	North	From the westerly curblines of Memorial Drive, west for a distance of <del>185</del> <b>225</b> feet ( <del>13</del> <b>8</b> spaces)
Park Avenue	South	Municipal Lot G, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1
<b><u>Second Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>From the southerly curblines of Park Avenue, south for a distance of 135 feet</u></b>

**§ 375-27 Child-care center business zones.**

The streets or parts of streets described below are hereby designated as child-care center business zones. No person shall park a vehicle in the areas described unless said vehicle is owned or operated by employees of the respective child-care center or present at these locations for the purpose of contacting or transacting within:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Center Avenue	West	From a point 25 feet north of the northerly curblines of Irvington Street, north for a distance of 135 feet
Elm Street	South	From a point 60 feet west of the westerly curblines of Third Avenue, west for a distance of 60 feet

~~§ 375-28 Police Department vehicles zone.~~

~~The area described below is hereby designated and reserved expressly for the parking of Police Department vehicles:~~

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Broadway	West	<del>From a point 36 feet south of the southerly curbline of Washington Avenue, south for a distance of 59 feet</del>

§ 375-29 **Removal of vehicles; costs and fees.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-136, any vehicle parked or left standing upon any of the areas described in this article which is disabled to the extent the operator cannot move it or any unoccupied vehicle parked or standing in violation of any section of this article shall be deemed a nuisance and a menace to the safe and proper regulation of traffic, and any peace officer may provide for the removal of such vehicle. The owner of such vehicle shall pay the reasonable costs and fees of the removal and storage which may result from such removal before regaining possession of the vehicle.

**Article VII**

**Nonmetered Time Limit Parking**

§ 375-30 **Three-hour zones.**

No person shall park a vehicle for longer than three hours at any time between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day, except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Bergen Street	North	From Lexington Avenue to Kinderkamack Road
Bergen Street	South	From Lexington Avenue to Roosevelt Avenue
Berkeley Avenue	East	From a point 392 feet south of the southerly curbline of Harrington Avenue, south to Lowell Street
Berkeley Avenue	West	From the southerly curbline of Harrington Avenue, south to Lowell Street
Bogert Place	North	From Berkeley Avenue to Westwood Avenue
Bogert Place	South	From Berkeley Avenue to Westwood Avenue
Crest Street	South	From a point 100 feet east of the easterly curbline of Kinderkamack Road, east to the end of the street
Fourth Avenue	East	From Elm Street, south to the end of the street, at the Enclave At Westwood property line
Fourth Avenue	West	From Park Avenue, south to the end of the street, at the Enclave At Westwood property line
Kinderkamack Road	East	From a point 160 feet south of the southerly curbline of Jefferson Avenue, extended across, south to Old Hook Road
Kingsberry Avenue	North	From Kinderkamack Road to the end of the street
Kingsberry Avenue	South	From Kinderkamack Road to the end of the street
Lester Avenue	North	From Kinderkamack Road to the end of the street
Lester Avenue	South	From Kinderkamack Road to the end of the street
Lexington Avenue	East	From Harrington Avenue, south to Old Hook Road

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Lexington Avenue	West	From Harrington Avenue, south to Old Hook Road
Lotus Street	South	From Kinderkamack Road, east to Lexington Avenue
Lowell Street	North	From Roosevelt Avenue, east to Lexington Avenue
Lowell Street	South	From Kinderkamack Road, east to Berkeley Avenue
Palm Street	North	From Kinderkamack Road, east to Lexington Avenue
Roosevelt Avenue	East	From Harrington Avenue, south to Old Hook Road
Roosevelt Avenue	West	From Harrington Avenue, south to Old Hook Road
Second Avenue	East	From Elm Street to Mill Street
Second Avenue	West	From Elm Street to Mill Street
St. Nicholas Avenue	East	From Becker Lane, south to the end of the street
St. Nicholas Avenue	West	From Washington Avenue, south to the end of the street
Third Avenue	East	From Mill Street, south for a distance of 612 feet, or to the north property line of <del>the Kettler School</del> <b><u>WRMS</u></b>
Third Avenue	West	From Mill Street, south to a point 200 feet north of Pine Street

§ 375-31 **Two-hour zones.**

No person shall park a vehicle for longer than two hours at any time between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day, except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Broadway	East	From a point 25 feet south of the southerly curblines of Grand Street, south to a point 215 feet north of the northerly curblines of Irvington Street
Broadway	East	From a point 100 feet south of the southerly curblines of Harold Street, south to a point 315 feet north of the northerly curblines of Lake Street
Center Avenue	East	From a point 433 feet south of the westerly curblines of Fairview Avenue, south to Lake Street
Center Avenue	East	From Lake Street to Irvington Street
Center Avenue	West	From a point 235 feet south of the westerly curblines of Fairview Avenue, south for a distance of 265 feet
Center Avenue	West	From Lake Street to Irvington Street
Elm Street	North	From the easterly curblines of Carolyn Street to the easterly curblines of Third Avenue
Elm Street	South	From the westerly curblines of Carolyn Street to the easterly curblines of Third Avenue
Fairview Avenue	East	From Lake Street to Irvington Street
Fairview Avenue	West	From Lake Street to Irvington Street
First Avenue	East	From a point 50 feet south of the southerly curblines of Park Avenue, extended across, south to the northerly curblines of Bogert Avenue
First Avenue	West	From Park Avenue to Mill Street

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Grand Street	South	From Kinderkamack Road to Broadway
Harrington Avenue	North	From Park Place to Berkeley Avenue
Harrington Avenue	South	From Berkeley Avenue, west to a point 193 feet west of the westerly curblineline of Roosevelt Avenue
Park Avenue	North	From Fourth Avenue, west to St. Nicholas Avenue
Park Avenue	South	From First Avenue to Second Avenue
Third Avenue	East	From Elm Street, south to a point 100 feet north of the northerly curblineline of Mill Street
Third Avenue	West	From Elm Street, south to a point 105 feet north of the northerly curblineline of Mill Street
Valley Avenue	North/East	From Old Hook Road to the end of the street

**§ 375-31.1 Fifteen-minute zones.**

[Added 2-21-2012 by Ord. No. 12-01]

No person shall park a vehicle for longer than fifteen minutes at any time between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. on any day upon any of the streets or parts of streets described below:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Green Avenue	North	From a point 88 feet west of the westerly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road west for a distance of 84 feet

**§ 375-32 Removal of vehicles; costs and fees.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-136, any vehicle parked or left standing upon any of the areas described in this article which is disabled to the extent that the operator cannot move it or any unoccupied vehicle parked or standing in violation of any section of this article shall be deemed a nuisance and a menace to the safe and proper regulation of traffic, and any peace officer may provide for the removal of such vehicle. The owner of such vehicle shall pay the reasonable costs and fees of the removal and storage which may result from such removal before regaining possession of the vehicle.

**Article VIII**

**Metered Time Limit Parking**

**§ 375-33 Marking of metered spaces.**

The Westwood Parking Authority is hereby directed and authorized to cause to be marked off individual parking spaces in the parking zones designated and described in §§ 375-42 through 375-46 of this article and in such other zones as may hereinafter be established. Said parking spaces are to be designated by lines painted or durably marked on the curbing or surface of the street. At each space so marked off, it shall be unlawful to park any vehicle in such a way that said vehicle shall not be entirely within the limits of the space so designated.

**§ 375-34 Installation of parking meters; meter requirements.**

In said parking meter zones, the Westwood Parking Authority shall cause parking meters to be installed upon the curb or sidewalk immediately adjacent to the parking spaces as provided in § 375-33 of this article, and the Parking Authority shall be responsible for the regulation, control, operation, maintenance and use of such parking meters. Each device shall be so set as to display a signal showing legal parking upon the deposit of the appropriate coin or coins, lawful money of the United States of America, for the period of time prescribed by this article. Each device shall be so arranged that, upon the expiration of the lawful time limit, it will indicate by a proper visible signal that the lawful parking period has expired,

and, in such cases, the right of such vehicle to occupy such space shall cease, and the operator, owner or possessor or manager thereof shall be subject to the penalties hereinafter provided.

**§ 375-35 Operation of meters; overtime parking; prohibition of meter feeding; meter obstruction.**

- A. Except in a period of emergency determined by an officer of the Police Department or Fire Department, or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or traffic control sign or signal, when any vehicle shall be parked in any parking space alongside of or next to which a parking meter is located, the operator of such vehicle shall, upon entering said parking meter space, immediately deposit or cause to be deposited in said parking meter such proper coin or coins of the United States as are required for such parking meter and as are designated by proper directions on the meter, and, when required by the directions on the meter, the operator of such vehicle, after the deposit of the proper coin or coins, shall also set in operation the timing mechanism on such meter in accordance with the directions properly appearing thereon, and failure to deposit such coin or coins and to set the timing mechanism in operation when so required shall constitute a violation of this article.
- B. Upon the deposit of such coin and the setting of the timing mechanism in operation as required, the parking space may be lawfully occupied by such vehicle during the period of time which has been prescribed for the part of the street in which said parking space is located, provided that any person placing a vehicle in a parking meter space adjacent to a meter which indicates that unused time has been left in the meter by the previous occupant of the space shall not be required to deposit a coin so long as his occupancy of said space does not exceed the indicated unused parking time. If said vehicle shall remain parked in any such parking space beyond the parking time limit set for such parking space, notwithstanding that additional coins have been inserted, then, and in such event, such vehicle shall be considered as parking overtime and beyond the period of legal parking time, and such parking shall be deemed a violation of this article.
- C. Meter feeding shall be prohibited.
- D. An obstruction permit will be required where a parking meter on any borough street or metered parking lot will be obstructed due to the placement of dumpsters, lifts, material or construction vehicles. This permit will only be issued in conjunction with a construction permit issued by the Construction Official. The application fee will be six dollars (\$6.00) plus daily meter rate. The application and fee payment can be obtained from the Parking Authority once a construction permit is issued.**

**§ 375-36 Rates; time limitations.**

- A. Parking a vehicle in the designated space in a parking meter zone shall be lawful only for the period of time therein fixed and upon the depositing of a coin or coins of the value stated herein for said time period as follows:
  - (1) ~~Ten cents for each 15 minutes. [Amended 2-1-2005 by Ord. No. 05-05]~~
  - (2) Ten cents for each hour, up to two hours, maximum lawful time.
  - (3) Twenty-five cents, for convenience, will also purchase two hours of parking.
- B. Said parking meters shall be operated in said parking meter zones every day, Monday through Saturday, except Sundays and public holidays, between the hours described below:
  - (1) Between **8:30** ~~9:00~~-a.m. and 6:00 p.m. in the following areas:

<b>Name of Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Bergen Street	Both	Between Kinderkamack Road and Center

<b>Name of Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Broadway	Both	Between Irvington Street and Jefferson Avenue
Center Avenue	Both	Between Irvington Street and Bergen Street
Fairview Avenue	Both	Between Irvington Street and <del>Jefferson Avenue</del> <b><u>Bergen Avenue</u></b>
Fourth Avenue	Both	Between Washington Avenue and Park Avenue
Jefferson Avenue	Both	Between Fairview Avenue and Broadway
Kinderkamack Road	West	Between Irvington Street and a point 235 feet south of Westwood Avenue
<del>Madison Avenue</del>	East	<del>North of Irvington Street</del>
Madison Avenue	West	Between Irvington Street and Washington Avenue

Municipal Lot A, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

Municipal Lot B, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

Municipal Lot C, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

Park Avenue	North	Between Third Avenue and Fourth Avenue
Third Avenue	Both	Between Washington Avenue and Elm Street
Washington Avenue	North	Between Broadway and Irvington Street
Westwood Avenue	Both	Between Kinderkamack Road and Broadway
Westwood Avenue	North	From a point 1,160 feet west of the Hillsdale Borough line to a point 172 feet east of the easterly curblineline of Kinderkamack Road

(2) Between 6:00 a.m. and ~~6:00~~ **9:00** p.m. in the following areas:

- (a) Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, Metered Lot 1, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1.
- (b) Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, Metered Lot 2, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1.

### § 375-37 Violations and penalties.

A. It shall be unlawful and a violation of the provisions of Article VIII of this chapter for any person to:

- (1) Cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of or operated by such person to be parked overtime or beyond the period of legal parking time established for any parking meter zone as herein described or to deposit in any parking meter any coin for the purpose of parking beyond the maximum legal parking time for the particular parking meter zone. Fine: \$13 per violation.
- (2) Permit any vehicle to remain or be placed in any parking space adjacent to any parking meter while said meter is displaying a signal indicating that the vehicle occupying such space has already been parked beyond the period prescribed for such parking space. Fine: \$13.

- (3) Park any vehicle across any line or marking of a parking meter space or in such position that the vehicle shall not be entirely within the area designated by such lines or markings. Fine: \$13.
- (4) Deface, injure, tamper with or open or willfully break, destroy or impair the usefulness of any parking meter installed under the provisions of this chapter as the court may fix. Minimum fine: \$250.
- (5) Deposit or cause to be deposited in any parking meter any slug, device or metal substance or other substitute for lawful coins. Fine: \$50.
- (6) Park any vehicle in a manner which encroaches or overhangs any part of a maneuvering space (as defined in Article II, § 375-7). Fine: \$22.
- (7) Park any vehicle with the front or rear bumper, as appropriate, more than three feet distant, measured parallel to the curb, from the parking meter for said space. Fine: \$13.

**(8) Obstruct a meter. Fine: \$25 per day per meter.**

B. Any person violating any provision of this article shall pay the fine listed for such violation.

**§ 375-38 Removal of vehicles; costs and fees.**

Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 39:4-136, any vehicle parked or left standing upon any of the areas described in this article which is disabled to the extent that the operator cannot move it or any unoccupied vehicle parked or standing in violation of any section of this article shall be deemed a nuisance and a menace to the safe and proper regulation of traffic, and any peace officer may provide for the removal of such vehicle. The owner of such vehicle shall pay the reasonable costs and fees of the removal and storage which may result from such removal before regaining possession of the vehicle.

**§ 375-39 Enforcement.**

It shall be the duty of the Westwood Parking Authority and the Police Department to enforce the provisions of this article and its sections, as directed from time to time by the Mayor and Council.

**§ 375-40 Collection of coins from meters.**

It shall be the duty of the Westwood Parking Authority to designate some officer or employee of the same to make regular collections of the money deposited in said parking meters, and it shall be the duty of such person so designated to remove from the parking meters the coins so deposited in said meters and to deliver said coins to the person designated by the Westwood Parking Authority.

**§ 375-41 Use of funds.**

The coins deposited in the parking meters shall be paid into the Treasury of the Westwood Parking Authority.

**§ 375-42 Fifteen-hour zones.**

The zones described in this section shall all have up to a fifteen-hour time limit for parking. The following named and described areas, public parking lots or portions of public parking lots, streets or portions of streets, as may hereinafter be included in this section by amendment hereto, lying within the corporate limits of the Borough of Westwood shall constitute fifteen-hour parking meter zones:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Washington Avenue	South	Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex, Metered Lot 1, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1
Washington Avenue	South	Municipal Lot D, the Municipal Complex,

Street	Side	Location
		Metered Lot 2, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1

§ 375-43 **Nine-hour zones.**

The zones described in this section shall all have up to a nine-hour time limit for parking. The following named and described areas, public parking lots or portions of public parking lots, streets or portions of streets, as may hereinafter be included this section by amendment hereto, lying within the corporate limits of the Borough of Westwood shall constitute nine-hour parking meter zones:

Street	Side	Location
Broadway	West	The first 8 metered spaces, beginning at a point 158 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street to a point 100 feet south therefrom
Broadway	[Repealed 11-14-2006 by Ord. No. 06-18]	
<del>Center Avenue</del>	<del>East</del>	<del>From a point 75 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south for a distance of 188 feet</del>
<del>Center Avenue</del>	<del>West</del>	<del>From a point 75 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south for a distance of 180 feet</del>
Center Avenue	West	<del>In Municipal Lot A, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, the 4 spaces facing north along the north side of the lot at the northwest corner of the lot and the 4 spaces facing south along the south side of the lot at the southwest corner of the lot and the 16 spaces facing west along the west side of the lot</del> <b><u>entire lot</u></b>
Center Avenue	West	In Municipal lot B, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, the 14 spaces facing north along the north end of the lot <b><u>designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b> and the 9 spaces facing west at the northwest corner of the lot
Fairview Avenue	East	From Bergen Street to Jefferson Avenue <b><u>designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>
Fairview Avenue	East	From a point 75 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south for a distance of 200 feet
Fairview Avenue	West	From Bergen Street to Jefferson Avenue <b><u>designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>
Fairview Avenue	West	From a point 75 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south for a distance of 185 feet
<del>Fairview Avenue</del>	<del>West</del>	<del>In Municipal Lot C, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, the 12 spaces facing south along the south side and the 13 spaces facing west along the west side of the lot</del>
<del>Fourth Avenue</del>	<del>East</del>	<del>From Washington Avenue to Park Avenue</del>
<del>Fourth Avenue</del>	<del>West</del>	<del>From Washington Avenue to Park Avenue</del>
<b><u>Kinderkamack Road</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>From the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 250 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue</u></b>
Madison Avenue	East	From Irvington Street, north for a distance of 360 feet, <b><u>designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>
Third Avenue	East	From Park Avenue to Elm Street

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Washington Avenue	North	From a point 150 feet east of the easterly curblines of Irvington Street, east for a distance of 165 feet
Westwood Avenue	North	From a point 1,160 feet west of the Hillsdale Borough line, west to a point 172 feet east of the easterly curblines of Kinderkamack Road

**§ 375-44 Two-hour zones.**

The zones described in this section shall all have up to a two-hour time limit for parking. The following named and described areas, public parking lots or portions of public parking lots, streets or portions of streets, as may hereinafter be included in this section by amendment hereto, lying within the corporate limits of the Borough of Westwood shall constitute two-hour parking meter zones:

<b>Street</b>	<b>Side</b>	<b>Location</b>
Bergen Street	North	From Kinderkamack Road to Fairview Avenue
Bergen Street	South	From Fairview Avenue to Center Avenue
Broadway [Amended 2-1-2005 by Ord. No. 05-05]	East	From a point 188 feet south of the intersection of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street with the easterly curblines of Broadway and extending to a point 223 feet south along the easterly curblines of Broadway Westwood Avenue, except as provided in
Broadway	East	From a point 120 feet south of the southerly curblines of Westwood Avenue, south to a point 105 feet north of the northerly curblines of Jefferson Avenue
Broadway	West	From a point 258 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 210 feet north of the northerly curblines of Washington Avenue
Broadway	West	From Washington Avenue to the northerly curblines of Jefferson Avenue, extended across
Center Avenue	East	From a point 188 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 96 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue
Center Avenue	East	From Westwood Avenue to Bergen Street
Center Avenue	West	From a point 180 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 195 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue
Center Avenue	West	Municipal Lot B, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, with the exception of the 9-hour zones as described in § 375-43 of this article
Center Avenue	West	From Westwood Avenue to a point 75 feet south of the southerly curblines of Bergen Street, extended across
Fairview Avenue	East	From a point 200 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 85 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue

Street	Side	Location
Fairview Avenue	East	From Westwood Avenue to Bergen Street
Fairview Avenue	West	From a point 185 feet south of the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 147 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue
Fairview Avenue	West	Municipal Lot C, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, <del>with the exception of the 9-hour zones as described in § 375-43 of this article</del> <b><u>entire lot</u></b>
Fairview Avenue	West	From Westwood Avenue to Bergen Street
<b><u>Fourth Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>East</u></b>	<b><u>From Washington Avenue to Park Avenue</u></b>
<b><u>Fourth Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>From Washington Avenue to Park Avenue</u></b>
Jefferson Avenue	South	From the westerly curblines of Fairview Avenue, extended across, west to a point 141 feet east of the easterly curblines of Broadway
<del>Kinderkamack Road</del>	<del>West</del>	<del>From the southerly curblines of Irvington Street, south to a point 250 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue</del>
Kinderkamack Road	West	From the southerly curblines of Westwood Avenue, south for a distance of 235 feet
Madison Avenue	West	From Irvington Street to Washington Avenue
Park Avenue	North	From Third Avenue to Fourth Avenue
Third Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]	East	From Memorial Drive <b><u>Washington Avenue</u></b> to Park Avenue
Third Avenue [Amended 5-20-2014 by Ord. No. 14-9]	West	From Memorial Drive <b><u>Washington Avenue</u></b> to Elm Street
Washington Avenue	North	From Broadway to Madison Avenue
Washington Avenue	North	From a point 78 feet west of the westerly curblines of Madison Avenue, west for a distance of 142 feet
Westwood Avenue	<del>South</del> <b><u>Both</u></b>	From Kinderkamack Road to Broadway

~~§ 375-45 Fifteen-minute zones.~~  
~~[Amended 2-1-2005 by Ord. No. 05-05]~~

The zones described in this section shall all have up to a fifteen-minute time limit for parking. The following named and described areas, public parking lots or portions of public parking lots, streets or portions of streets, as may hereinafter be included in this section by amendment hereto, lying within the corporate limits of the Borough shall constitute fifteen-minute parking meter zones:

Street	Side	Location
Broadway	East	From a point 146 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue, north to a point 210 feet north of the northerly curblines of Westwood Avenue

~~§ 375-46 Three-hour zones.~~

The zones described in this section shall all have up to a three-hour time limit for parking. The following

Revised 8/16/16

named and described areas, public parking lots or portions of public parking lots, streets or portions of streets, as may hereinafter be included in this section by amendment hereto, lying within the corporate limits of the Borough of Westwood shall constitute three-hour parking meter zones:

Street	Side	Location
Center Avenue	West	Municipal Lot A, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, with the exception of the 9-hour zones as described in § 375-43 of this article

(new section)

**Article IX**

**Employee Parking**

**§ 375-47 Designated employee parking zones**

**The following streets or parts of streets, and metered spaces within the Municipal Parking Lots, are designated as employee parking zones. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours of 6:00 am and 6:00 pm Monday through Saturday unless the vehicle has displayed from its rear view mirror a valid and current employee parking hang tag.**

<b><u>Center Avenue (North Lot)</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>In Municipal lot B, as described in Chapter 237, Article I, § 237-1, the 14 spaces facing north along the north end of the lot designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag, and the 9 spaces facing west at the northwest corner of the lot</u></b>
<b><u>Fairview Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>East</u></b>	<b><u>From Bergen Street to Jefferson Avenue, designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>
<b><u>Fairview Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>West</u></b>	<b><u>From Bergen Street to Jefferson Avenue designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>
<b><u>Madison Avenue</u></b>	<b><u>East</u></b>	<b><u>From Irvington Street, north for a distance of 360 feet, designated as employee parking and requiring a valid and current hang tag</u></b>

**§ 375-48 Issuance of employee hang tags, fees:**

- A. Employee hang tags are issued annually by, and may be purchased from, the Clerk of the Borough of Westwood.**
- B. An annual fee of \$10 per hang tag is hereby fixed for issuance of such hang tag. Tags shall be valid from September 1 through August 30<sup>th</sup>.**
- C. Hang tags may only be purchased by merchants or businesses owners only in the downtown business zone. For purposes of this article, the downtown business zone is defined as the area bordered by and including Jefferson Avenue, Kinderkamack Road, Irvington Street, Madison Avenue, and Fourth Avenue. Hang tags will be numbered and assigned to that specific store/business. A current lease must be presented.**

**D. The Parking Authority shall from time to time adopt rules for the issuance of said hang tags and encompassing such matters as verification of eligibility, issuance of replacement tags and the like.**

**§ 375-49 Meter rates for employee parking**

**A. Employees may use employee hang tags only in the designated locations listed above. Meter rates for parking with an employee hang tag in designated areas are as follows:**

**Center Avenue North Lot (14 spaces only) - current meter rate**

**Fairview Avenue from Bergen To Jefferson, both sides - .25¢ for four hours.**

**Madison Avenue north of Irvington Street - . 25¢ for four hours.**

**B. Employee hang tags are not valid outside of the designated locations. Vehicles displaying employee hang tags that are parked illegally shall be subject to violations and penalties.**

**§ 375-50 Violations and penalties**

**Unauthorized use of employee hang tags shall result in a \$25 fine.**

Section 2. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence or any other part of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance.

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances which are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 4. If any section, subsection, part, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid by judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such section, subsection, part, clause or phrase shall be deemed to be severable from the remainder of this Ordinance.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication as required by law.

Adopted: \_\_\_\_\_

Approved:

Attest:

\_\_\_\_\_  
John Birkner, Jr., Mayor

\_\_\_\_\_  
Karen Hughes, Borough Clerk